
 

MHCWD – 11-19-20 Agenda - Page 1 of 3 
  
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

MMIIDDWWAAYY  HHEEIIGGHHTTSS  CCOOUUNNTTYY  WWAATTEERR  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  
 

November 19, 2020 @ 7:00 P.M. 
 

Note: Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20 and given the state of 
emergency regarding the threat of COVID-19, the meeting will be held via webinar on 
the Zoom application. The web link is: 
 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83673292461?pwd=Rnk4cnB3ZkhnVVRTcGUyTEU0TkVJUT09 
 

Meeting ID: 836 7329 2461 
 
 Passcode: 855726 
 
The meeting may also be accessed via phone at the toll-free number of: 

         888-788-0099, 833-548-0276, 833-548-0282 or 877-853-5247  

Information on zoom meetings may be found at: 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-meeting  

 
❖ This agenda has been prepared and posted at least 72 hours prior to the regular board 

meeting of the Midway Heights County Water District Board of Directors in accordance with 
the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

 
❖ The chronological order of agenda items does not necessarily mean that each item will be 

considered in that order.  Any listed items may be considered at any time during the 
meeting, at the discretion of the Board President. 

 
❖ The public may address the Board on each agenda item during the Board's consideration of 

that item. Any members of public present at a meeting will be asked but are not required to 
state their name to the Board Secretary so that their attendance may be made a matter of 
public record.  

 
❖ The Board is prohibited by law from taking action on any matter not appearing on the posted 

agenda, except in certain cases provided for in the Brown Act. 
 
❖ In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you 

need a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, 
please contact Jason Tiffany at (530) 878-8096 (phone) or (530) 878-8096 (fax).  Requests 
must be made as early as possible, and at least one full business day before the start of the 
meeting. 

 
❖ In accordance with Government Code Sec. 54954.2 (a) this notice and agenda were posted 

at the following locations:  MHCWD Office; Meadow Vista Post Office; Meadow Vista Village 
Center; at the intersection of Placer Hills and Peaceful Valley Roads; at the intersection of 
Oak Hill and Hillsdale Roads and Meadow Vista Community Center. 

 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83673292461?pwd=Rnk4cnB3ZkhnVVRTcGUyTEU0TkVJUT09
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-meeting


MHCWD – 11-19-20 Agenda - Page 2 of 3 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes from the September 8, 2020 Special Meeting and the September 15, 
2020 Regular Meeting will be discussed and may be approved. 

IV. PUBLIC FORUM

This time is scheduled for comments from members of the public concerning 
subjects that do not specifically appear as items elsewhere on the agenda. The 
total time allotted for the public forum session is generally limited to 20 minutes.  
Discussion on each particular issue is limited to 10 minutes.  Individuals are limited 
to approximately 3 minutes of public comments. 

V. GENERAL BUSINESS 

A. CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

B. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: VIRTUAL EVENT CODE OF CONDUCT 

C. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF 
AD-HOC COMMITTEE REGARDING GENERAL MANAGER’S 
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS. THE BOARD MAY ACT ON THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

D. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: EXPENDITURE OF GRANT FUNDS FROM 
PCWA FOR GIS EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE 

E. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: AWARDING OF CONTRACT TO DIVE, 
INSPECT, CLEANOUT AND PREFORM EPOXY COATING REPAIRS TO 
THE DISTRICT’S THREE TREATED WATER TANKS 

F. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: EXECUTING A “COMMITMENT TO 
EXCELLENCE” WITH THE DISTRICT’S INSURANCE PROVIDER, THE 
ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES JOINT POWERS 
INSURANCE AUTHORITY 

VI. FINANCIAL

A. REVIEW & REAFFIRMATION OF STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 



 

MHCWD – 11-19-20 Agenda - Page 3 of 3 
  
 

 
B. TREASURER'S REPORT- APPROVAL OF ACCOUNT TRANSFERS AND 

BILLS PAID 
 

Fund Summaries and Checking Account Reconciliation Registers showing the 
balances of all the District's funds and bills paid for the month of September 
2020 will be reviewed, discussed, and acted upon by the Board. 

 
VII. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSION AND 

CALENDAR REVIEW  
 

The Board and staff may take this opportunity to ask questions; provide or receive 
information; make requests or provide direction regarding subsequent meeting 
agendas.  

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

MHCWD –10-08-2020 Minutes – Page 1 of 2 
  
 

MMIIDDWWAAYY  HHEEIIGGHHTTSS  CCOOUUNNTTYY  WWAATTEERR  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  
 

Special Board Meeting Minutes 
 

October 8, 2020 @ 7:00 P.M. 
 

Note: Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20, and given the state of 
emergency regarding the threat of COVID-19, the meeting for the public was held via 
webinar. The Directors and the General Manager met at the District office located 
at16717 Placer Hills Road, Meadow Vista, CA 95722. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 With a quorum present, President Craig Stone called the meeting to order at 7:01 

PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL  
  
 DIRECTORS PRESENT:Craig Stone      
   Donald Rushton 
   Tracy Langlands  
       
 DIRECTORS ABSENT:David Wiltsee 
        Vacant position        

       
 OTHERS PRESENT:Jason Tiffany, General Manager-Secretary to the Board 
            
 MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:Jim Mehl.  
         Pauline Nevins 
         
III. PUBLIC FORUM  Jim Mehl stated that someone was in the Zoom waiting room at 

the September 17, 2020 meeting and thanked the General Manager for sending 
over the grant application information for the strategic plan framework. Pauline 
Nevins commented about the strategic plan and wanted to be assured that no 
conversation about the General Manager’s contract would take place during the 
closed session.   

  
 
IV. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION AT 7:11 PM:  GENERAL MANAGER 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Zoom meeting will close to the public) 
 
Public employee performance evaluation involving the General Manager under 
Government Code sections 54954.5(e) and 54957. 
 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION  
(Zoom meeting opened to public at approximately 8:30 PM) 
 
The Board reported that it was M/S Don Rushton/Tracy Langlands to approve 
the General Manager’s review as written. 



 

MHCWD –10-08-2020 Minutes – Page 2 of 2 
  
 

 
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 3 Nay  Absent 2 Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

President Stone adjourned the meeting at 8:32 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,       Approved, 
 
 
 
             
        
Jason Tiffany       Craig Stone 
Secretary to the Board     President of the Board 
Midway Heights County Water District 
 
Dated:     
 

 
Midway Heights County Water District 

All Attachments, Ordinances, Resolutions, Policies, etc. are on file with Midway Heights 
County Water District. 

Copies are available upon request. 



 

MHCWD –10-15-2020 Minutes – Page 1 of 4  
 

MMIIDDWWAAYY  HHEEIIGGHHTTSS  CCOOUUNNTTYY  WWAATTEERR  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  
 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 

October 15, 2020 @ 7:00 P.M. 
 

Note: Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20, and given the state of 
emergency regarding the threat of COVID-19, the meeting was held via webinar. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 With a quorum present, President Craig Stone called the meeting to order at 7:10 pm. 
 
II. ROLL CALL  
  
 DIRECTORS PRESENT: Craig Stone      
   Donald Rushton 
   Tracy Langlands  
      David Wiltsee 
 
 DIRECTORS ABSENT:  Vacant position 
             
 OTHERS PRESENT: Jason Tiffany, General Manager-Secretary to the Board 
            
 MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: Luana Dowling- Placer Firewise Communities Coordinator 
      Jim Mehl.  
      Richard Goodwin 
      Pauline Nevins 
      Barbara Milton 
  Tina Leahy 
      Other member of public via Zoom 
   
III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Tina Leahy asked if Director Langlands would amend her statement in the minutes. 

Director Langlands said she would not 
 
 M/S  Craig Stone/Tracy Langlands moved to approve the minutes from the September 

17, 2020 Regular Meeting as amended (footer date updated). 
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent 1 Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

  
IV. PUBLIC FORUM   
 



 

MHCWD –10-15-2020 Minutes – Page 2 of 4  
 

Mr. Goodwin asked about the review of the General Manager and if the District was 
going to use its Ad-Hoc committee form. Mr Goodwin was assured that the District 
would use the form and that it would be available for review. 

 
V. GENERAL BUSINESS    
 
 

A. CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. DIRECTORS' REPORTS-none 
2. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT-attached. 

Mr. Mehl stated that he had only sent five public records requests and that if there 
is a problem with the Pine Hill sampling station he should be informed since it is on 
his property. 

 
B. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: ACCESS ACROSS DISTRICT PROPERTY FOR A 

POTENTIAL COMMUNITY EMERGENCY FIRE ESCAPE ROUTE ON BRIDLE PATH 
ROAD AND NATURE’S WAY 
 
The Board reviewed a four-page letter from Brian Eagan, Battalion Chief/Colfax, Alta 
area. (attached). He states in the letter that the “route is a death trap” and  
“unfortunately though through word of mouth and past community members declaring 
it as "their escape route" many years ago it has been defined as something that it was 
never intended to be or should ever be considered as.” Luana Dowling, Placer 
Firewise Communities Coordinator, commented she has decades of experience as a 
fire fighter and that she has seen some terrible outcomes in areas like the one in 
question and that it should not even be considered as an escape route via foot. The 
General Manager commented that he contacted the insurance company and that they 
commented that the only liability the District would face is if they were to open the area 
up to traffic, weather foot or vehicle. The insurance company also mentioned 
EPA/Homeland security, potential damage to District facilities and interference with the 
fire departments. 
 
The Board took no formal action. 

 
C. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: DISTRICT PUMP STATION THAT BLOCKS FIRE 

EASEMENT IN COYOTE HILLS ESTATES 
 

 
M/S David Wiltsee / Donald Rushton to authorize the General Manager to contact 
the District’s engineer, the surveyor, and the attorney to coordinate resolving 
this issue as quickly as possible by acquiring additional easement area. 
 
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent 1 Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 



 

MHCWD –10-15-2020 Minutes – Page 3 of 4  
 

D. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: AWARDING OF CONTRACT TO DIVE, INSPECT, 
CLEANOUT AND PERFORM EPOXY COATING REPAIRS TO THE DISTRICT’S 
THREE TREATED WATER TANKS 
 
 
M/S Donald Rushton/ Tracy Langlands to award the contract to the low bidder, 
Pittsburg Tank and Tower.  

 
Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
 
 

        

Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent 1 Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 
E. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: CONTRACTING WITH A TEMPORARY WORK 

AGENCY SUCH AS OPERATIONAL TECHNICAL SERVICES FOR FIELD STAFF 
TO FACILITATE PROJECTS IN HOUSE 
 
The Board, staff and the public discussed the idea of temporary help. The idea was 
generally well accepted, and the Board asked the General Manager to further research 
the idea. 

 
F. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT FOR 

STRATEGIC PLANNING SERVICES WITH EYLON STRATEGIES IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $20,000 
 
The Board, staff and public continued to discuss the grant. Director Stone explained 
that the grant would help the District identify capabilities and that this framework would 
become property of PCWA and offered as a repeatable template to improve 
governance of public agencies throughout California. 
  

 
G. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE: REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF AD-HOC 

COMMITTEE REGARDING GENERAL MANAGER’S COMPENSATION AND 
BENEFITS. THE BOARD MAY ACT ON THE RECOMONDATIONS 

 
The committee (Directors Langlands and Rushton) reported that they were still working 
on the evaluation.  

 
VI.  FINANCIAL. 

 
A. TREASURER'S REPORT- APPROVAL OF ACCOUNT TRANSFERS AND BILLS 

PAID 
 
Discussion and review of the Fund Summary, Checking Account Reconciliation, and 
Check Register showing the balances of all the District's funds and bills paid for the 
month of September 2020. 
 
M/S Tracy Langlands/Craig Stone moved to accept the report. 



 

MHCWD –10-15-2020 Minutes – Page 4 of 4  
 

 
Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent 1 Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 
 
VII. BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSION AND CALENDAR REVIEW  

 
Director Stone said he would contact Eylon Strategies and see if they would put on a 
presentation about strategic planning framework. 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

President Stone adjourned the meeting at 9:50 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,       Approved, 
 
 
 
             
        
Jason Tiffany       Craig Stone 
Secretary to the Board     President of the Board 
Midway Heights County Water District 
 
Dated:     
 

 
Midway Heights County Water District 

All Attachments, Ordinances, Resolutions, Policies, etc. are on file with Midway Heights County 
Water District. 

Copies are available upon request. 



MHCWD              10/15/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-A 2 
 

  

 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: V-A 2. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
It has come to my attention that some of the customer are concerned about the 
District’s ability to respond to public records request. The District has ten days to 
respond to the request. The response does not have to include the requested items as 
the requested items can easily overwhelm District operations.  
 
From the District’s attorney: 
 
Legally, any request for public information and records of the District is itself public 
record/information since it is a communication from a third party to MHCWD, and 
requestors’ names are not subject to any exemption from disclosure. 
 
The majority of the request come from one source, Jim and Ruth Mehl. In the last 15 
month the District has sent about 50 emails containing about 100 documents to the 
Mehls.  
 
The District is having problems at the treated water sampling station on Pine Hill Road. 
While researching how to resolve this issue I discovered documentation that I feel 
obligated to bring to the Board.  Once I compile the information, I will coordinate with the 
attorney the appropriate agenda item. 
 
It has also been brought to my attention that some of the customers are still having an 
issue with the three service trucks the District purchased in 2018.  I updated the web 
site to include a picture of the trucks with equipment loaded and the caption: 
 
 “District trucks ready to roll! The District purchased the three four-wheel drive service 
trucks in 2018. The trucks are set up similar in order to be interchangeable in case of a 
breakdown, maintenance and mileage rotation. When District staff is working on a 
project or responding to emergencies, one truck hauls the backhoe, one hauls the dump 
trailer, and one is set up with specialized tools of the trade. In the background is the 
District's 330,000-gallon tank built in 2012.” 
 
Hopefully, this clarifies the issue. 



Hello Community Members, 
 
My name is Brian Eagan and I am the CAL FIRE/Placer County Fire Battalion Chief for the 
Colfax/Alta Battalion which includes the community on and around Coyote Hill as well as being 
an 18 year resident of the community. 
 
As your local CAL FIRE/PCFD Battalion Chief one of my duties is meeting with community 
members and groups and educating, working with and providing direction to the improvement 
of defensible space and preparation of their community's in the event of a wildland fire. This 
sometimes includes helping them with defining what they should or should not consider to be a 
safe or appropriate escape route. 
 
It has come to my attention both through a recent flyer I received in the mail regarding the 
Midway Heights Water Board election and being contacted directly by Midway Heights as the 
local CAL FIRE/PCFD Battalion Chief, that there is interest by some in the community of 
unlocking the gate at the end of Bridle Path Rd on what is being described as in the flyer the 
"Coyote Hills Wildland Fire Escape Route". 
 
As both your Battalion Chief and as a resident that lives near this location who was a member 
of the Coyote Hills Homeowner Association Board "CHHA" I am very familiar with this location 
and the history behind it. In this capacity though as your Battalion Chief I feel it is my 
professional duty to help educate the community specific to this unofficial declaration as the 
community's "escape route" and whether you would want to use it or not. 
 
Before I provide some critical information to you that will help you in making sound and 
educated decisions for your safety in the event of a wildland fire specific to a safe and 
appropriate escape route, I have to make the following statements and insure you understand I 
have no bias in this mater. Through this email and any further communications I am; 

1. Not endorsing nor am I opposed to the individual/s running for the Midway Heights 
Water Board. 

2. Not in support of or opposed to the locking or unlocking of the gate in question. 

3. Not defining the legal right of anyone's use of the road or Midway Heights right to 
secure the gate.  

4. I am though simply providing you facts based on my profession opinion of whether 
this is an appropriate and safe escape route or not. 

For those who are not familiar with the location and gate, what is being discussed is the dirt 
portion of Bridle Path Rd beyond the pavement onto the unimproved dirt portion that passes 
through a yellow pipe gate marking the end of the CHHA property boundary ending at a locked 
chain link gate marking the boundary of Midway Heights property.  
 



The history behind this section of road and many other areas in our community is that they 
originally existed as part of the road system that traversed our community during the goldrush 
and further development of the community. Sometime prior to 1990 Midway Heights Water 
District improved this section of road for the installation of two water lines below or along this 
section of road to serve this and other communities from their facility at the end of Natures 
Way. Natures Way is off of Magnolia Ranch Road off of West Weimar Cross Rds just west of the 
elementary school and would be the route used from Bridle Path Rd for someone escaping 
from our community.  
 
In the early 1990's the land now part of the CHHA was split in a minor land division and sold off 
as 4, 20 acre parcels. These 4 parcels were then split again into the 4 more 5 acre parcels as 
what we know as the current boundary of CHHA. During this time the County 
required no emergency fire access or exit for a minor land split approval. This is different than 
the development of Sierra Suncloud HOA which wasn't a minor land split and is why there is a 
designated emergency fire access or exit at the intersection of Coyote Hill Rd and Green Ridge 
Dr leading to Timber Hills Rd. 
 
When I meet with community members and discuss emergency access and exits specific to 
wildland fires I assess locations for access and exits based on 6 factors. These factors may not 
be legal descriptions under the County's Planning Department requirements for emergency 
access or exits. But they are factors that under my 35 years of experience and tragically lessons 
learned over the last several fire seasons of searching for and finding civilians killed attempting 
to escape wildland fires have proven to be true and contributed to their deaths! 
 
These 6 factors are; 

1. What is the width and length of the road section? Can vehicles turnaround or pass 
each other safely? 

2. What and where does the road lead? 

3. How easy is the access to a county improved road? Could someone get lost easily? 

4. Does the road lead to an area that would be impacted negatively for residence 
escaping that area or emergency equipment entering the area if other residences 
used it? 

5. What type of vegetation and what is the clearance surrounding the road? 

6. What is the topography like that the road travels through? 

In assessing the entire length of the road being described as the "Coyote Hills Wildfire Escae 
Route" from the pavement's edge on Bridle Path to West Weimar Cross Rds. It is my 
professional opinion that this is a highly hazardous and dangerous route and I not 
recommended it for escape! It is also my professional opinion that someone attempting this 
route and being caught by fire would die! It is so hazardous that I would not assign fire fighters 
to use it during periods when fire is impinging on it! 



 
I make this assessment based on these facts; 

1. The length of the road from pavement to pavement is .94 miles or 4,976 feet. This is 
a very long way to travel in a emergency! With the exception of the beginning 
portion off Bridle Path the road is only wide enough for one vehicle with very few 
and distant wide spots for pullouts. There are no turnarounds. Currently we are 
seeing spread rates on fires of hundreds if not thousands of feet per minute 
including spots fire well ahead of the main fire front. Drivers attempting to use this 
route would be overtaken by the main fire front or their escape route cut off by spot 
fires before they could exit on to West Weimar Cross Rds.  

2. From the Coyote Hill area the road leads into another rural, overgrown with 
vegetation neighborhood. This area is more overgrown than our own neighborhood. 
An appropriate escape route should lead to an area of reduced vegetation not into 
heavier fuels. 

3. This neighborhood off of Nature's Way and Magnolia Ranch Rd consists of one lane 
roads both paved and gravel with both overgrown brush and trees along the road 
side. In the dark or in smokey conditions drivers would get lost attempting to exit 
the area trapping them at dead ends. 

4. This neighborhood has an escape route problem of it's own as described above, 
additional vehicles added to this neighborhood would jeopardize their safe escape 
and hamper the ability for vehicles to pass including emergency vehicles accessing 
the area for fire attack and rescue! This lack of access and exit would create a traffic 
jam trapping people ahead of and in the middle of the fire front. We have seen this 
as a major contributing factor to civilian deaths trying to escape wildland fires. 

5. The entirety of the route has no clearance with overgrown vegetation on both sides 
of the road and a tight canopy above. Flame lengths in this type of vegetation could 
exceed 100 plus feet. The vegetation fuel bed is highly receptive to spot fires and 
although the main fire front would rapidly travel through the area it is the spots fires 
ahead of the main fire that would trap people. On an average summer day we see 
spot fires up to a quarter mile ahead of the main fire front in these vegetation 
conditions. 

6. The section of road from Bridle Path to the gate is what we call a "midslope road". It 
is not on the top or at the bottom of a slope it is in the middle. Fire burns 4 times 
faster uphill than on flat ground. Roads traveling midslope have historically trapped 
and killed fire fighters and civilians alike. In addition to the midslope road issue there 
is one other factor that makes this route a death trap. The topography where the 
road meets the gate at the Midway Heights property line is at the top of a drainage. 
In wildland fires, areas of drainages what is called a "chimney" funnel fire up them 
faster and with more intensity than even on a steep slope. At the top of a drainage is 
where we see the most intense fire activity. This winter when you have a fire in your 
fireplace go outside and look at the heat coming out of your chimney. Drivers 



attempting to cross this area would be trapped at the top of a drainage! As fire 
fighters we never use or attempt to work in or at the top of drainages.  

I understand this may sound threatening to some, that is not my intent. Unfortunately though 
through word of mouth and past community members declaring it as "their escape route" 
many years ago it has been defined as something that it was never intended to be or should 
ever be considered as.  
 

It is my hope that this conversation could be focused not on the locking or unlocking of a gate 
but directed towards positive, obtainable, measurable and worth while defensible space and 
preparation work done within our community that makes the community fire safe. What is 
proving true fire after fire is those communities who have worked together and provided that 
defensible space and preparation to their homes and community are surviving wildland fire 
threats in their neighborhood. 
 

I offer my time to visit with anyone in the community or any community group to help educate 
and prepare you and your property for such a threat. Now is the best time to develop a plan to 
get started this winter to be successful next summer! 
 

Please don't hesitate to contact me.  
 

Sincerely,  
 
Brian Eagan 
Battalion Chief/Colfax, Alta Battalion 

CAL FIRE/Placer County Fire Department 

Nevada/Yuba/Placer Unit 
530-277-2313 

 



MHCWD              11/19/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-A 1 
 

  

 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: V-A 1. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
The District conducted a Water System COVID-19 Financial Impacts Survey with the 
State Water Resources Control Board. Before COVID-19, the District had virtually no 
outstanding accounts receivable at the start of each new billing cycle. At the start of the 
last billing cycle, the District had 57 outstanding accounts totaling about $14,692.90. 



MHCWD              11/19/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-B 
 

  

 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: VIRTUAL EVENT CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
Director Wiltsee asked for this to be on the agenda. From Director Wiltsee: 
 
Attached is a Code of Conduct for virtual meetings.  It is from the Council of State Governments, 
an interstate cooperative organization.  I believe it is appropriate for Midway Heights, in fact all 
governmental organizations now using virtual rather than in-person meetings, to adopt such a 
code.  Once adopted, the Code should be:  
  
1) posted on the organization web site  
2) referenced at the beginning of each and every virtual meeting 
3) perhaps referenced somewhere on every agenda.  "Rules of the Game" are needed to keep 

order and protect those responsible for maintaining an orderly meeting (staff, chair person, 
etc.) 

 
I attached a draft policy. 
 
The District does have a decorum policy in its Code, Section 2.2.12 (h); 
 
Decorum.    Each director, staff person, and member of the public who addresses the Board 

shall do so in an orderly manner.  No person shall make personal, impertinent, slanderous, or 
profane remarks to any member of the Board, staff, or general public.  No person shall 
engage in disorderly or boisterous conduct, including the utterance of loud, threatening or 
abusive language, whistling, stamping of feet, clapping, or other acts that unreasonably 
disturb, disrupt, delay or otherwise impede the orderly conduct of any Board meeting.  Except 
as allowed by these rules of order, a director or staff person shall not by conversation or 
other means delay the Board proceedings or disturb any other director, staff person or 
member of the public who is addressing the Board. 

 
 
 



 

P&P/1.1.F.     VIRTUAL EVENT CODE OF CONDUCT         Page 1 of 2 
Approved 10/19/2020 

 

MIDWAY  HEIGHTS  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT 

POLICIES  AND  PROCEDURES 

Virtual Event Code of Conduct 

I understand that by participating in any Midway Heights County Water District 
(MHCWD) virtual event, I am agreeing to the following code of conduct 

Expected Behavior 

• Because MHCWD values a diversity of views and opinions, all 
participants, attendees, MHCWD staff, volunteers and vendors will be 
treated with respect. 

• Be considerate, respectful and collaborative with fellow participants. 

• Respect the rules of all conference venues – including virtual ones. All 
participants are also subject to the laws applicable in the United States 
and the state/territory in which the event/program is held. 

 

 

 

Unacceptable Behavior 

• Harassment, intimidation, stalking or discrimination in any form is 
considered unacceptable behavior and is prohibited. } Examples of 
unacceptable behavior include: 

• Comments related to gender, gender identity or expression, age, 
sexual orientation, disability, physical appearance, body size, race, 
religion, national origin, political affiliation; 

• Inappropriate use of nudity and/or sexual images in presentations. 

•  

Sexual harassment is a specific type of prohibited conduct. Sexual harassment is any 
unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature that might reasonably be expected or be 
perceived to cause offense or humiliation. Sexual harassment may involve any conduct 
of a verbal, nonverbal or physical nature, including written and electronic 
communications, and may occur between persons of the same or different genders. 

• Physical, verbal or non-verbal abuse or threat of violence toward of any 
attendee, speaker, volunteer, exhibitor, MHCWD staff member, service 
provider, or any other meeting guest/participant is prohibited. 

• Disruption of presentations or events at any MHCWD hosted online 
session is prohibited. 

 



 

P&P/1.1.F.     VIRTUAL EVENT CODE OF CONDUCT         Page 2 of 2 
Approved 10/19/2020 

 

 

 

Reporting Unacceptable Behavior 

If you or anyone else is in immediate danger at any time, please contact local law 
enforcement (by calling 911). All other reports should be made to a member of the 
senior management team. 

 

 

 

Consequences 

If MHCWD determines that a person has violated any part of this code of conduct, 
MHCWD in its sole discretion may take any of the following actions: 

• Verbal or written warning; 

• Expulsion from the MHCWD virtual event; 

• Suspension of attendance at MHCWD events – both virtual and in-
person; 

• Prohibited attendance at any future MHCWD event – both virtual and in- 
person; 

• Prohibited participation with MHCWD in the future; 

• Reporting conduct to sponsoring state entity/organization; 

• Reporting conduct to local law enforcement. 

 



P&P/1.1.E.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS: AD HOC COMMITTEE SCOPE   Page 1 of 1 
Approved 4/17/14 

 

MIDWAY  HEIGHTS  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT 
 

POLICIES  AND  PROCEDURES 
 

BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS:  AD HOC COMMITTEE SCOPE  
 

Title General Manager wage and compensation review 

Purpose 
To analyze the compensation of the General Manager  
 

Estimated Completion Date: November 

16,2020 

Date of Board Action: November 19,2020 

Director Fees Authorized NO 

Number of Authorized Meetings:  N/A 

Committee 
Members 

Warning: no more than two directors are allowed to serve on an Ad 
Hoc Committee. 
 
Director 1: Donald Rushton 
Director 2: Tracy Langlands  
 
 

 
 

Committee 
Scope 

Is the compensation of the General Manager appropriate? Is it 
competitive with the local market? Should District Policy 2.2.D “ON-
CALL DUTIES  &  EMERGENCY  CALL-OUTS” be modified. Currently 
the General Manger takes on call and works overtime on emergencies 
in the field for no compensation while the other employees are 
compensated. 

What is Out of 
Scope 

 
 

 
 
 

Deliverables 

The Ad Hoc Committee will provide the following deliverables: 
 
Task 1 – Analysis of General Managers compensation based off 
published rates. 
 
 
 

 



General Manager Compensation Review Midway Heights County Water District

Ad Hoc Committee Report 
2020 November 

General Manager 
Compensation Review 
This report considers the current financial compensation for Jason Tiffany, 
General Manager of Midway Heights County Water District, in comparison with 
the compensation of General Managers of similar sized water agencies.  It also 
recommends changes in compensation for 2020.  And it summarizes benefits 
currently enjoyed by the General Manager as well as raising questions regarding 
changes to those benefits.


Purpose 
The General Manager’s compensation package is subject to periodic review.  
Terms of the salary include a base salary plus a cost of living adjustment and 
merit increases.  The Ad Hoc committee asked the following questions.


• Is the salary appropriate?


• Is the salary competitive with other local agencies?


• Is the salary competitive with the salaries offered by similar agencies?


• Are the benefits appropriate?


Method 
In general, the Ad Hoc committee reviewed salaries paid to similar public 
agencies providing potable water.  The committee then compared the salaries.


In addition, the committee reviewed the benefits offered.  Benefits offered to the 
managers of other agencies were not identified.


1



General Manager Compensation Review Midway Heights County Water District

Sources 
The committee started with the previous salary survey performed by the District in 
2018.  The 2018 survey used the website transparentcalifornia.com (Transparent 
California) as the source for salary information, and the committee started with 
that source.  In addition, the committee used the website publicpay.ca.gov 
(Government Compensation in California) for salary information because data for 
2019 for some of the agencies identified in the previous survey was not found in 
Transparent California.


To determine which agencies shared similar characteristics with Midway Heights, 
the committee used the website sdwis.waterboards.ca.gov (CA Drinking Water 
Watch).  This site details the agencies by the number of connections, sources of 
water, and other data.  The committee relied largely on the number of connections 
to establish whether an agency is similar to Midway Heights.  Please note, 
however, that this site does not offer information on services provided other than 
potable water.


To determine what other services the agencies offer, the committee reviewed the 
websites of the individual agencies.


Salary Findings 
The committee started with a list of 23 agencies that were either considered local 
(Placer, Nevada, and El Dorado counties) or considered similar in size to Midway 
Heights.  The management for some of those agencies could not be readily 
compared to Midway Heights and thus were dropped from consideration.  For 
example, the committee couldn’t identify a salary specific to the water 
department manager for the City of Roseville.  The committee also rejected data 
for agencies it considered too big to compare with Midway Heights.  The limit of 
services supplied was 2000.


With those agencies eliminated from consideration, the committee reviewed the 
data for twelve agencies.


2

http://transparentcalifornia.com
http://publicpay.ca.gov
http://sdis.waterboards.ca.gov


General Manager Compensation Review Midway Heights County Water District

The data identified these categories of financial compensation:


• Regular Pay

• Overtime Pay

• Other Pay

• Total Pay (= Regular + Overtime + Other)

• Benefits

• Total Pay & Benefits 

The committee summarized the bolded categories for comparisons.  The twelve 
agencies provided these average compensations:


	 	 Average Total Pay $ 138,872 
Average Total Pay & Benefits  $ 167,593 

The committee noted that two of the agencies provided compensation well above 
these averages.  Squaw Valley PSD provides Total Pay & Benefits of $ 307,673 
while Donner Summit PUD provides Total Pay & Benefits of $ 243,272.


With these two agencies eliminated from the list of comparisons, the averages 
drop somewhat to those shown as follows.


	 	 Average Total Pay $ 114,951 
Average Total Pay & Benefits  $ 146,017 

Midway Heights compensation is


	 	 Total Pay $ 97,049 
Average Total Pay & Benefits  $ 132,116 

Salary Recommendations 
The contract for Midway Heights General Manager states that the salary is 
composed of a base salary plus a cost of living adjustment plus any merit 
increase deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.


Ignoring outliers, increases from the 2018 survey show a general rise of about 
3%.  This squares well with COLAs found from other sources.  The Consumer 
Price Index rose 2.8% from Feb 2019 to Aug 2020; and Social Security’s COLA, 
using the prorated values for 2019 May through 2020 Oct is 3.2%.


3



General Manager Compensation Review Midway Heights County Water District

The Committee recommends a 3% COLA.  The committee also recommends 
consideration of a merit increase to make the compensation more competitive 
with similar agencies.  The committee believes an increase of 2% is reasonable.


Benefits 
The Midway Heights General Manager currently receives several benefits.  Some 
of the benefit changes that could be considered include:


• Increases to vacation time, currently 20 days per year

• Increases to administrative leave

• Extra pay during emergency callouts outside of normal work hours


The committee makes no recommendations on these benefits.


Backup Data 
Supporting data is included in attachments.


4



Employee Name Job Title Base Pay Over6me Pay Other Pay Defrd Comp Benefits Total Pay Change Change/Yr Total Pay & Benefits Change Change/Yr Year/Source Notes Agency Status
Tom Birmingham General Manager  $ 389,266  $ -    $ 52,930  $ 55,633  $ 442,196 1.060 1.020  $ 497,829 1.193 1.061 2019/TC Large ag district; serves ~700 farms Westlands Water District FT
Paul Cook General Manager  $ 309,060  $ -    $ 45,682  $ 59,038  $ 354,742 1.145 1.046  $ 413,780 1.044 1.014 2019/TC Water & WW; serves > 380,000 residentsIrvine Ranch Water District FT
Paul Shoenberger General Manager  $ 270,660  $ -    $ 20,000  $ 72,947  $ 290,660 1.028 1.009  $ 363,607 1.103 1.033 2019/TC Serves 110,000 residents; 18 sq mi Mesa Water District
Jerry D. Brown General Manager  $ 279,917  $ -    $ 27,928  $ 34,543  $ 307,845  $ 342,388 2019/GCC Contra Costa Water District EXCLUDES $58,559 DEFINED BENEFIT CONTRIB
James Barrea GENERAL MANAGER  $ 290,687  $ -    $ 48,953  $ 22,860  $ 339,640 0.979 0.993  $ 362,500 0.982 0.994 2019/TC Serves > 109,000; water, WW, storm water, recycles, et alCoachella Valley Water District PT
Robert T Shaver General Manager  $ 292,333  $ -    $ 10,228  $ 87,414  $ 302,561 1.072 1.023  $ 389,975 0.959 0.986 2019/TC 84,000 connec6ons; 105 sq mi; 233 personnelAlameda County Water District FT
John J Mura General Manager  $ 289,098  $ -    $ 67,310  $ 81,599  $ 356,408 1.057 1.019  $ 438,007 1.132 1.042 2019/TC Serves ~ 102,000; water & WW East Valley Water District FT
John A Bosler GENERAL MANAGER/CEO  $ 241,954  $ -    $ 26,066  $ 117,674  $ 268,020  $ 385,694 2019/TC Cucamonga Valley Water District PT

General Manager  $ 279,701  $ -    $ 19,176  $ 54,384  $ 7,935  $ 298,877  $ 306,812 2019/GCC Monte Vista Water District EXCLUDES $30,781 DEFINED BENEFIT CONTRIB
Michael Yeraka General Manager/ Secretary  $ 247,255  $ -    $ 2,429  $ 52,790  $ 249,684  $ 302,474 2016 Diablo Water District FT
Renae Hinchey General Manager  $ 244,859  $ -    $ 25,778  $ 34,681  $ 270,637  $ 305,318 2016 Laguna Beach County Water District PT
Robert Cheng GENERAL MANAGER, ASSISTANT  $ 267,431  $ -    $ 21,293  $ 45,102  $ 288,724 1.168 1.053  $ 333,826 1.161 1.051 2019/TC See Line 6 Coachella Valley Water District FT
John McInnes General Manager  $ 241,746  $ -    $ 29,221  $ 69,336  $ 270,967  $ 340,302 2016 Goleta Water District PT
Robert Hill General Manager  $ 145,436  $ -    $ 187,372  $ 67,926  $ 332,808 1.251 1.078  $ 400,734 1.230 1.071 2019/TC Serves ~ 49,000; water, WW, & recycles waterEl Toro Water District FT
Joone Kim-Lopez General Manager  $ 294,500  $ -    $ 61,230  $ 44,604  $ 355,730 1.241 1.075  $ 400,334 1.165 1.052 2019/TC Serves > 170,000 customers Moulton-Niguel Water District FT
Daniel R Ferons GENERAL MANAGER  $ 235,890  $ -    $ 19,802  $ 76,700  $ 255,692  $ 332,392 2016 Santa Margarita Water District FT
Jeff Armstrong General Manager  $ 279,610  $ -    $ 14,780  $ 28,251  $ 294,390 1.202 1.063  $ 322,641 1.075 1.025 2019/TC Serves 45,000 connec6ons w/ 970 mi mains, mul6ple reservoirsRancho California Water District FT
Steven C. Dalke General Manager  $ 228,448  $ -    $ -    $ 40,290  $ 228,448  $ 268,738 2016 Kern-Tulare Water District FT
L. Mark Mulkay General Manager  $ 228,317  $ -    $ -    $ 51,463  $ 228,317  $ 279,780 2016 Kern Delta Water District
JEFF PAPE GENERAL MANGER  $ 215,000  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 215,000  $ 215,000 2013 Lee Lake Water District
Harry O Starkey General Manager  $ 214,062  $ -    $ 5,279  $ 46,861  $ 219,341  $ 266,202 2016 West Kern Water District FT
Paul Bushee General Manager  $ 233,727  $ -    $ 17,189  $ 61,556  $ 250,916 1.087 1.028  $ 312,472 1.098 1.032 2019/TC Collects WW for ~ 60,000 residents; 16 sq miLeucadia Wastewater District FT
Christopher DeGabriele General Manager  $ 209,760  $ -    $ 770  $ 25,901  $ 210,530  $ 236,431 2016 North Marin Water District
Maahew Litchfield GENERAL MANAGER  $ 207,686  $ -    $ 450  $ 56,985  $ 208,136  $ 265,121 2016 West Valley Water District FT
Arden Wallum Administra6ve-Execu6ve  $ 214,043  $ -    $ 36,521  $ 69,779  $ 250,564 1.121 1.039  $ 320,343 1.124 1.040 2019/TC W and WW; 1.25E6 Ft pipeline, 14 water wells, 24 reservoirs; 135 sq miMission Springs Water District FT
Michael Holmes General Manager  $ 205,803  $ -    $ 57,933  $ 71,631  $ 263,736  $ 335,367 2015 Walnut Valley Water District FT
Michael Geary General Manager  $ 199,648  $ -    $ 198  $ 61,154  $ 199,846  $ 261,000 2016 Squaw Valley Public Service District FT
Rob Roscoe General Manager  $ 198,194  $ -    $ 4,200  $ 59,690  $ 202,394  $ 262,084 2016 Sacramento Suburban Water District FT
Tom Coleman General Manager  $ 194,845  $ -    $ 14,599  $ 62,137  $ 209,444  $ 271,581 2016 Rowland Area County Water District FT
Marc Marcantonio General Manager  $ 194,586  $ -    $ 12,051  $ 36,267  $ 206,637  $ 242,904 2016 Yorba Linda Water District
Darryl Barrow General Manager  $ 225,457  $ -    $ 24,896  $ 49,280  $ 250,353 1.178 1.056  $ 299,633 1.191 1.060 2019/TC Serves ~ 4000 res, comm, and irrig services;Westborough County Water District FT
Tony Stafford General Manager  $ 204,727  $ -    $ 757  $ 63,997  $ 205,484 1.033 1.011  $ 269,481 1.083 1.027 2019/TC Serves ~ 35,000 residents & > 3000 ac agCamrosa Water District FT
Keith Van Der Maaten General Manager  $ 213,581  $ -    $ 5,400  $ 75,564  $ 218,981 1.097 1.031  $ 294,545 1.150 1.048 2019/TC Marina Coast Water District PT
Hector Ruiz General Manager  $ 190,000  $ -    $ 10,236  $ 59,527  $ 200,236  $ 259,764 2016 Trabuco Canyon Water District FT
Andrew Brunhart General Manager  $ 188,857  $ -    $ 32,311  $ 18,684  $ 221,168  $ 239,852 2016 South Coast Water District FT
David Ansolabehere General Manager  $ 179,792  $ -    $ 5,404  $ 45,140  $ 185,196  $ 230,336 2016 Cawelo Water District
Thomas Haglund General Manager  $ 178,692  $ -    $ -    $ 36,755  $ 178,692  $ 215,448 2016 Tuolumne U6li6es District FT
Lon Mar6n Administra6ve-Execu6ve  $ 168,037  $ -    $ 13,398  $ 27,780  $ 181,435 0.939 0.979  $ 209,215 0.970 0.990 2019/TC San Luis Water District
Stephen Cole General Manager  $ 174,791  $ -    $ 8,654  $ 64,440  $ 183,444  $ 247,884 2016 Newhall County Water District FT
Not Provided General Manager  $ 174,435  $ -    $ 8,922  $ 40,074  $ 183,357  $ 223,431 2016 Orchard Dale Water District
Joseph Zoba General Manager  $ 172,251  $ -    $ 17,175  $ 55,146  $ 189,426  $ 244,572 2016 Yucaipa Valley Water District FT
Tammy Rudock General Manager  $ 190,737  $ -    $ 20,868  $ 28,746  $ 211,605 1.224 1.070  $ 240,351 1.102 1.033 2019/TC Mid Peninsula Water District
Anthea Hansen Administra6on  $ 208,333  $ -    $ -    $ 48,264  $ 208,333 1.220 1.068  $ 256,597 1.211 1.066 2019/TC Del Puerto Water District
Ed Schmidt General Manager  $ 167,268  $ -    $ -    $ 45,015  $ 167,268  $ 212,283 2016 S6nson Beach County Water District
Piret Harmon General Manager  $ 167,159  $ -    $ 2,880  $ 23,281  $ 170,039  $ 193,320 2016 Scoas Valley Water District
Dave Eggerton General Manager  $ 165,227  $ -    $ 10,108  $ 38,503  $ 175,335  $ 213,838 2016 Calaveras County Water District 15
David R Dickson GENERAL MANAGER  $ 163,761  $ -    $ 6,000  $ 21,601  $ 169,761  $ 191,362 2016 Coastside County Water District PT
Patrick Hayes General Manager  $ 154,502  $ -    $ 152,073  $ 80,466  $ 306,575 1.784  $ 387,041 1.657 2019/TC Serves 8200 permanent residents, 33,500 pk winter weekend; 5.8 sq mi; water and WW; 43 FT staffMammoth County Water District PT
Donald Ridenhour General Manager  $ 175,240  $ -    $ 3,869  $ 63,243  $ 179,109 1.057 1.019  $ 242,352 0.986 0.995 2019/TC Serves ~ 6100 connec6ons; water and WWSunnyslope County Water District PT
Ed Muzik General Manager  $ 247,631  $ -    $ 31,567  $ 49,326  $ 279,198 1.332  $ 328,524 1.319 2019/TC Serves ~ 24,000 people; water and WWHi-Desert Water District PT
Daniel Muelrath Assistant General Manager  $ 213,885  $ -    $ 4,800  $ 63,989  $ 218,685 1.358  $ 282,674 1.448 2019/TC Diablo Water District
Ronald Duncan General Manager  $ 213,998  $ -    $ 33,383  $ 51,327  $ 247,381 1.364  $ 298,708 1.305 2019/TC Serves ~ 14,400 connec6ons; 167 mi pipe, 15 wells, 18 tanksSoquel Creek Water District
Donald Zdeba General Manager  $ 157,156  $ -    $ 3,023  $ 39,581  $ 160,179  $ 199,760 2016 Indian Wells Valley Water District FT
Ryan Gross General Manager  $ 143,026  $ -    $ 11,754  $ 36,198  $ 154,780 0.987 0.996  $ 190,978 0.946 0.982 2019/TC Serves > 3065 customers; 45.5 miles pipelineRunning Springs Water District FT
Nicholas J. Turner General Manager  $ 156,244  $ -    $ 4,431  $ 16,872  $ 160,675  $ 177,547 2016 Montecito Water District FT
Karl Drew General Manager  $ 155,934  $ -    $ -    $ 31,443  $ 155,934  $ 187,377 2016 Crestline Village Water District FT
Thomas Love General Manager  $ 154,028  $ -    $ 5,400  $ 19,546  $ 159,428  $ 178,974 2015 Crescenta Valley County Water District PT
Lisa  Ohlund General Manager  $ 222,331  $ -    $ 6,188  $ 49,431  $ 228,519 1.510  $ 277,950 1.446 2019/TC East Orange County Water District PT
Raymond Kolisz General Manager  $ 169,900  $ -    $ -    $ 63,309  $ 169,900 1.065 1.021  $ 233,209 1.183 1.058 2019/TC Twentynine Palms County Water District FT
Cari Lemke General Manager  $ 94,849  $ -    $ 60,958  $ 25,394  $ 155,807 0.876 0.957  $ 181,201 0.723 0.898 2019/TC North Coast County Water District FT
James Prior General Manager  $ 162,291  $ -    $ 10,456  $ 61,318  $ 172,747 1.121 1.039  $ 234,065 1.132 1.042 2019/TC San Gabriel County Water District FT
David Coxey General Manager  $ 158,693  $ -    $ 6,368  $ 26,707  $ 165,061 1.105 1.034  $ 191,768 1.052 1.017 2019/TC Bella Vista Water District FT
Robert Mc Donald General Manager  $ 141,741  $ -    $ 5,069  $ 38,082  $ 146,810  $ 184,892 2016 Carpinteria Valley Water District FT
Patrick Walter General Manager  $ 140,501  $ -    $ -    $ 36,751  $ 140,501  $ 177,252 2016 Purissima Hills Water District FT
Patrick Walter General Manager  $ 140,501  $ -    $ -    $ 36,751  $ 140,501  $ 177,252 2016 Purissima Hills Water District FT
Bert Rapp General Manager  $ 157,548  $ -    $ -    $ 39,446  $ 157,548 1.135 1.043  $ 196,994 1.117 1.038 2019/TC Ventura River County Water District FT
Lynda Noriega General Manager  $ 137,500  $ -    $ -    $ 52,451  $ 137,500  $ 189,951 2014 Valley County Water District
John Mar6n General Manager  $ 137,480  $ -    $ 9,759  $ 37,209  $ 147,239  $ 184,448 2016 Tehachapi - Cummings County Water District FT
Greg Galindo General Manager  $ 135,942  $ -    $ 7,723  $ 41,932  $ 143,664  $ 185,596 2016 La Puente Valley County Water FT
Thomas J Crowley GENERAL MANAGER  $ 135,386  $ -    $ 237,480  $ 83,561  $ 372,865  $ 456,426 2016 West Valley Water District PT
Maahew H. Hurley General Manager  $ 135,000 Aggregate Aggregate  $ 27,514  $ 135,000  $ 162,514 2016 Angiola Water District
Mark Grajeda General Manager  $ 134,718  $ -    $ 8,498  $ 40,384  $ 143,216  $ 183,600 2016 Pico Water District PT

2018 GM Salaries Updated

1



Bill Koehler General Manager  $ 121,915  $ -    $ -    $ 47,403  $ 121,915  $ 169,318 2016 Redwood Valley County Water District
Debra Sedwick General Manager  $ 121,662  $ -    $ -    $ 28,677  $ 121,662  $ 150,339 2016 Del Paso Manor Water District FT
Jeff Maupin General Manager  $ 120,001  $ -    $ 16,153  $ 39,727  $ 136,154  $ 175,881 2016 North Yuba Water District PT
Dennis O Lamb General Manager  $ 119,850  $ -    $ 127,115  $ 28,066  $ 246,965  $ 275,031 2016 Vallecitos Water District PT
Ricardo Ortega General Manager  $ 149,600  $ -    $ 10,000  $ 39,243  $ 159,600 1.091 1.029  $ 198,843 1.147 1.047 2019/TC Grassland Water District FT
Mel C Johnson General Manager  $ 132,091  $ -    $ -    $ 33,195  $ 132,091  $ 165,286 2019/TC Serves 3255 connec6ons; wells and TPGreenfield County Water District FT
Dave Souza GENERAL MANAGER  $ 131,800  $ -    $ 8,914  $ 33,556  $ 140,714  $ 174,270 2019/TC Serves irriga6on water Pleasant Valley County Water District
Marc Vanden General Manager  $ 110,000  $ -    $ 2,200  $ 32,933  $ 112,200  $ 145,133 2016 Paaerson Irriga6on District

General Manager  $ 105,667  $ -    $ 34,039  $ 13,971  $ 1,872  $ 139,706  $ 155,549 2019/GCC 462 connec6ons, mul6ple wells, WW and parksMalaga County Water District
Brad Arnold General Manager  $ 113,029  $ -    $ -    $ 45,855  $ 113,029 1.093 1.030  $ 158,884 1.105 1.034 2019/TC Serves ag water to ~ 57,000 ac South Suaer Water District
Norman Dean General Manager  $ 110,843  $ -    $ -    $ 33,560  $ 110,843 1.089 1.029  $ 144,403 1.149 1.047 2019/TC Serves treated water to 1478 connec6onsMeadow Vista County Water District FT
Norman Dean General Manager  $ 110,843  $ -    $ -    $ 33,560  $ 110,843 1.089 1.029  $ 144,403 1.149 1.047 2019/TC Meadow Vista County Water District FT

General Manager  $ 132,263  $ -    $ -    $ 11,246  $ 132,263  $ 143,509 2019/GCC Serves 1987 treated connec6ons and 59 irriga6onBorrego Water District EXCLUDES $9,239 DEFINED BENEFIT CONTRIB
Manager  $ 113,630  $ -    $ -    $ 9,090  $ 22,607  $ 113,630  $ 145,327 2019/GCC Irriga6on distribu6on for 34,785 ac Biggs-West Gridley Water District

Tony Lopes General Manager  $ 118,946  $ -    $ 658  $ 22,057  $ 119,604  $ 141,661 2019/TC Serves 985 connec6ons; also WW Forestville Water District
Mike Hollebrands General Manager  $ 134,924  $ 14,071  $ -    $ 27,584  $ 148,995 1.520  $ 176,579 1.390 2019/TC Serves 1280 connec6ons; 19 miles pipeMeiners Oaks County Water District FT
Martha Slack General Manager  $ 98,438  $ -    $ 8,859  $ 35,640  $ 107,297 1.115 1.037  $ 142,937 1.123 1.039 2019/TC Serves ~ 1275 residences water & WWRio Alto Water District FT
Reynaldo Derma General Manager  $ 88,186  $ -    $ -    $ 14,690  $ 88,186  $ 102,876 2019/TC Irriga6on distribu6on for ~14,700 ac Bard Water District FT
Dennis Erdman General Manager  $ 218,277  $ -    $ 13,877  $ 31,693  $ 232,154  $ 263,847 2019/GCC Crescenta Valley County Water District EXCLUDES $21,228 DEFINED BENEFIT CONTRIB
Jason Tiffany General Manager  $ 97,049  $ -    $ -    $ 35,067  $ 97,049 1.091 1.030  $ 132,116 1.025 1.008 2019/TC Midway Heights County Water District

 $ 97,049  $ 35,067  $ 97,049  $ 132,116 2019/GCC
Tom Lynch General Manager  $ 85,645 Aggregate Aggregate  $ 8,564  $ 85,645  $ 94,209 2015 Idyllwild Water District

General Manager  $ 170,237  $ -    $ 18,958  $ 4,233  $ 21,694  $ 189,195  $ 215,122 2019/GCC 3992 connec6ons Carpinteria Valley Water District FT
Calvin Louie General Manager  $ 87,960  $ -    $ -    $ 65,801  $ 87,960 0.922 0.973  $ 153,761 1.165 1.052 2019/TC ~ 933 connec6ons Cabazon County Water District
Dianna Mann General Manager  $ 106,400  $ -    $ -    $ 26,525  $ 106,400  $ 132,925 2019/TC 2035 connec6ons, treatment plant? Clearlake Oaks Water District

General Manager  $ 86,430  $ -    $ -    $ 9,600  $ 86,430  $ 96,030 2019/GCC 449 connec6ons; 2 wells, treatment plantCallayomi County Water District EXCLUDES $5,965 DEFINED BENEFIT CONTRIB
Amy Montgomery General Manager  $ 99,263  $ -    $ 1,200  $ 38,324  $ 100,463 1.238 1.074  $ 138,787 1.179 1.056 2019/TC 654 connec6ons Santa Nella County Water District

General Manager  $ 109,642  $ -    $ -    $ 21,047  $ 109,642  $ 130,689 2019/GCC 954 connec6ons; 5 wells; WW and fireArrowbear Park County Water District EXCLUDES $7,304 DEFINED BENEFIT CONTRIB
Gary Clinkebeard GENERAL MANAGER  $ 78,500  $ 2,399  $ -    $ 3,366  $ 80,899  $ 84,265 2015 Franklin County Water District PT
Cur6s Jorritsma General Manager  $ 108,318  $ -    $ 6,000  $ 8,228  $ 114,318 1.468  $ 122,546 1.372 2019/TC Serves ~ 5000 residents water & WW Hilmar County Water District FT
Lynn Phillips General Manager  $ 85,408  $ -    $ 4,298  $ 20,214  $ 89,706 1.028 1.009  $ 109,920 1.053 1.017 2019/TC Serves 19,700 ac ag water Suaer Extension Water District
Frank Costner General Manager  $ 96,114  $ -    $ -    $ 31,582  $ 96,114 1.263 1.060  $ 127,696 1.452 2019/TC ~ 1800 connec6ons Konoc6 County Water District FT
Cur6s Houghton General Manager  $ 75,385  $ -    $ 175  $ 5,400  $ 75,560  $ 80,960 2016 High Valleys Water District FT
James Hansen General Manager  $ 74,720  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 74,720  $ 74,720 2013 Mariana Ranchos County Water District
Randy Hardenbrook General Manager  $ 72,055  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 72,055  $ 72,055 2016 Quail Valley Water District FT
Ralph Felix General Manager  $ 72,012  $ -    $ -   Not Provided $ 72,012 2016 Rio Linda-Elverta Community Water District FT
David F. Vigil General Manager  $ 72,000  $ -    $ -    $ 5,880  $ 72,000  $ 77,880 2016 Home Garden County Water District FT
Jerry Phillips General Manager  $ 68,021  $ -    $ -    $ 25,638  $ 68,021  $ 93,659 2016 Western Hills Water District FT
Daniel Ruiz General Manager  $ 66,625  $ -    $ 1,500  $ 15,731  $ 68,125  $ 83,856 2016 Westside Water District
Rachelle Henry General Manager  $ 63,636  $ -    $ -    $ 13,236  $ 63,636  $ 76,872 2016 Upper Lake County Water District FT
Denise Johnson General Manager/Administrator  $ 62,573  $ -    $ 3,565  $ -    $ 66,138  $ 66,138 2013 Juniper-Riviera County Water District
John Shull General Manager  $ 60,006  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 60,006  $ 60,006 2016 Thunderbird County Water District FT
Marian Henrici General Manager  $ 57,216  $ -    $ -   Not Provided $ 57,216 2016 Rio Linda-Elverta Community Water District FT
Poole General Manager-Interium  $ 53,709  $ -    $ -    $ 36,986  $ 53,709  $ 90,695 2016 Borrego Water District PT
Nakia Foskea General Manager  $ 53,491  $ 6,530  $ 4,286  $ 4,922  $ 64,307  $ 69,229 2016 Buckingham Park Water District FT
Mark Crosby General Manager  $ 53,000 Not Provided $ 3,000  $ 9,828  $ 56,000  $ 65,828 2016 West Valley County Water FT
General Manager General manager  $ 52,563  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 52,563  $ 52,563 2016 Rossmoor-Los Alamitos Area Sewer District
Michael A Powell General Manager  $ 51,835  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 51,835  $ 51,835 2016 Rand Communi6es Water District FT
David Rodrigues General Manager/Operator  $ 45,228  $ -    $ -    $ 7,661  $ 45,228  $ 52,889 2016 Hydesville County Water District FT
Gary Almsted General Manager 1  $ 39,840  $ -    $ -    $ 7,980  $ 39,840  $ 47,820 2016 Green Valley County Water District
Kevin Francis General Manager 2/ U6lity Assistant 1  $ 39,829  $ -    $ -    $ 2,951  $ 39,829  $ 42,780 2016 Green Valley County Water District
Terry Lyons General Manager  $ 36,477 Aggregate Aggregate  $ 4,937  $ 36,477  $ 41,414 2015 Idyllwild Water District
Thomas Mosby General Manager  $ 34,124  $ -    $ 112,876  $ 5,449  $ 147,000  $ 152,449 2016 Montecito Water District PT
Glenn T Pruim General Manager  $ 16,308  $ -    $ 52  $ 4,394  $ 16,360  $ 20,754 2016 Vallecitos Water District PT
Marcia Joyce General Manager  $ 22,750  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 22,750 1.423  $ 22,750 1.423 2019/TC 107 connec6ons Garden Farms Community Water District PT
Dale Wickstrom General Manager  $ 14,846  $ -    $ -    $ 1,039  $ 14,846  $ 15,885 2016 Hilmar County Water District PT
Janice Jonson General Manager  $ 13,800  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 13,800 1.278 1.085  $ 13,800 1.278 1.085 2019/TC 55 connec6ons Sonoma Mountain County Water District PT
James L Heitzman General Manager  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 139,063  $ -    $ 139,063 2016 Marina Coast Water District PT
Maahew Stone General Manager  $ -    $ -    $ 18,162  $ -    $ 18,162  $ 18,162 2016 Rancho California Water District PT
Kim Adamson General Manager  $ -    $ -    $ 67,847  $ -    $ 67,847  $ 67,847 2016 Soquel Creek Water District

Average: 1.032 Average: 1.031
Avg w/ Ou6ers: 1.05053580884299 Avg w Ou6ers: 1.049

NOTE:  Pink indicates data for 2019 was not found on “Transparent California”

2018 GM Salaries Updated

2



Table 1 - Raw Data
Agency Employee Name Job Title Regular Pay Over:me Pay Other Pay Total Pay Benefits Total Pay & Benefits Year/Source Services Notes

San Juan 
Suburban Water 
District

Paul E Helliker General Manager $190,615 $0 $5,760 $196,375 $51,363 $247,738 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves ~ 10,650 
connections; WTP

El Dorado 
Irrigation District

James 
Abercrombie

General Manager $221,026 $0 $29,514 $250,540 $39,829 $290,369 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 41,536 
connections; 
multiple WTPs

Nevada Irrigation 
District

Remleh 
Scherzinger

General Manager $250,017 $0 $9,581 $259,598 $49,259 $308,857 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves ~25,000 
homes, farms, and 
businesses; large 
district with both 
treated and 
irrigation water

PCWA Einar Maisch General Manager $274,563 Not Provided $7,500 $282,063 $53,244 $335,307 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves ~41,000 
connections plus 
wholesaling; Large 
district treated and 
irrigation

City of Roseville $0 $0

City of Lincoln Anthony Leftwich 
Raymond

Director of Public 
Works

$158,128 $0 $5,504 $163,632 $16,961 $180,593 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 18,974 
connections; also 
WW, fire, police

This data excludes 
“Pension Debt” of 
$29,962.

City of Grass 
Valley

$0 $0

Georgetown 
Divide Public 
Utilitiy District

General Manager $155,578 $155,578 $41,848 $197,426 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 3824 
connections; 

Foresthill PUD Hank White General Manager $164,575 $0 $0 $164,575 $56,423 $220,998 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves ~ 2032 
connections; 7 FT 
and 1 PT 
employees; treated 
only; wells and raw 
water reservoir

Meadow Vista 
CWD*

Norman Dean General Manager $110,843 $0 $0 $110,843 $33,560 $144,403 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves ~ 1478 
customers; treated 
only

Midway Heights 
CWD

Jason Tiffany General Manager $97,049 $0 $0 $97,049 $35,067 $132,116 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 438 treated 
customers; also 
irrigation

Weimar Water $0 $0

Sierra Lakes CWD Jeff Krebill Utility System 
Operator III

$90,240 $4,010 $9,000 $103,250 $29,566 $132,816 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 816; Also 
WW and lake and 
land management

A GM is listed on 
the SL CWD 
website, but there’s 
no info re: pay or 
status of GM; staff 
of 4

Squaw Valley PSD Michael Deary General Manager $247,324 $0 $26,350 $273,674 $33,999 $307,673 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 835; also 
covers WW, fire, 
garbage, and snow 
removal on bike 
trails

Christian Valley 
Park CSD

General Manager 
(Also Meter Reader)

$50,045 $0 $0 $50,045 $0 $50,045 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 2032 
connections

Agency

Local and Comparable Districts' General Managers' Pay

1



Donner Summit 
PUD

General Manager $208,901 $0 $34,371 $243,272 $0 $243,272 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 352 
connections; also 
WW; staff ~7

Heber PUD 
(Imperial Co)

General Manager $102,511 $0 $0 $102,511 $27,789 $130,300 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 1629 
connections; also 
WW and parks(?)

Boron CSD (Kern 
Co)

General Manager $95,066 $14,655 $6,722 $116,443 $32,139 $148,582 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 613 
connections; well + 
treated purchase; 
also WW and street 
lighting

Mojave PUD (Kern 
Co)

Bee Coy Jr General Manager $115,795 $536 $116,331 $33,612 $149,943 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 1166 
connections; wells 
+ treated purchase; 
also WW

La Habra Heights 
CWD (LA County)

Michael Gualtieri General Manager $148,536 $0 $12,867 $161,403 $49,284 $210,687 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 1998 
connections; wells 
+ treated purchase; 
9 staff

Doesn’t include 
$11,300 Pension 
Debt

Home Garden 
CWD (Riverside 
Co)

David Vigil General Manager $74,800 $0 $0 $74,800 $3,642 $78,442 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 835 
connections; well + 
treated purchase

Centerville CSD 
(Shasta Co)

General Manager $117,849 $0 $40 $117,889 $38,413 $156,302 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 1272 
connections; 
treated purchase

Meiners Oaks 
CWD (Ventura Co)

Mike Hollebrands General Manager $134,924 $14,071 $0 $148,995 $27,585 $176,580 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 1248 
connections; wells

Employee Name Job Title Regular Pay Over:me Pay Other Pay Total Pay Benefits Total Pay & Benefits Year/Source Services NotesAgency

Local and Comparable Districts' General Managers' Pay

2



Table 2 - Filtered Data - Smallish Districts
Agency Employee Name Job Title Regular Pay Over:me Pay Other Pay Total Pay Benefits Total Pay & Benefits Year/Source Services Notes Comments

San Juan 
Suburban Water 
District

Paul E Helliker General Manager $190,615 $0 $5,760 $196,375 $51,363 $247,738 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves ~ 10,650 
connections; WTP

Not comparable; 
too many 
connections

El Dorado 
Irrigation District

James 
Abercrombie

General Manager $221,026 $0 $29,514 $250,540 $39,829 $290,369 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 41,536 
connections; 
multiple WTPs

Not comparable; 
too many 
connections

Nevada Irrigation 
District

Remleh 
Scherzinger

General Manager $250,017 $0 $9,581 $259,598 $49,259 $308,857 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves ~25,000 
homes, farms, and 
businesses; large 
district with both 
treated and 
irrigation water

Not comparable; 
too many 
connections

PCWA Einar Maisch General Manager $274,563 Not Provided $7,500 $282,063 $53,244 $335,307 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves ~41,000 
connections plus 
wholesaling; Large 
district treated and 
irrigation

Not comparable; 
too many 
connections

City of Roseville No data available

City of Lincoln Anthony Leftwich 
Raymond

Director of Public 
Works

$158,128 $0 $5,504 $163,632 $16,961 $180,593 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 18,974 
connections; also 
WW, fire, police

This data excludes 
“Pension Debt” of 
$29,962.

Not comparable; 
too many 
connections and 
disparate services

City of Grass 
Valley

No data available

Georgetown 
Divide Public 
Utilitiy District

General Manager $155,578 $155,578 $41,848 $197,426 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 3824 
connections; 

Foresthill PUD Hank White General Manager $164,575 $0 $0 $164,575 $56,423 $220,998 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves ~ 2032 
connections; 7 FT 
and 1 PT 
employees; treated 
only; wells and raw 
water reservoir

Meadow Vista 
CWD*

Norman Dean General Manager $110,843 $0 $0 $110,843 $33,560 $144,403 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves ~ 1478 
customers; treated 
only

Midway Heights 
CWD

Jason Tiffany General Manager $97,049 $0 $0 $97,049 $35,067 $132,116 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 438 treated 
customers; also 
irrigation

Weimar Water No data available

Sierra Lakes CWD Jeff Krebill Utility System 
Operator III

$90,240 $4,010 $9,000 $103,250 $29,566 $132,816 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 816; Also 
WW and lake and 
land management

A GM is listed on 
the SL CWD 
website, but there’s 
no info re: pay or 
status of GM; staff 
of 4

Squaw Valley PSD Michael Deary General Manager $247,324 $0 $26,350 $273,674 $33,999 $307,673 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 835; also 
covers WW, fire, 
garbage, and snow 
removal on bike 
trails

Christian Valley 
Park CSD

General Manager 
(Also Meter Reader)

$50,045 $0 $0 $50,045 $0 $50,045 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 2032 
connections

Donner Summit 
PUD

General Manager $208,901 $0 $34,371 $243,272 $0 $243,272 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 352 
connections; also 
WW; staff ~7

Agency

Local and Comparable Districts' General Managers' Pay

3



Heber PUD 
(Imperial Co)

General Manager $102,511 $0 $0 $102,511 $27,789 $130,300 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 1629 
connections; also 
WW and parks(?)

Boron CSD (Kern 
Co)

General Manager $95,066 $14,655 $6,722 $116,443 $32,139 $148,582 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 613 
connections; well + 
treated purchase; 
also WW and street 
lighting

Mojave PUD (Kern 
Co)

Bee Coy Jr General Manager $115,795 $536 $116,331 $33,612 $149,943 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 1166 
connections; wells 
+ treated purchase; 
also WW

La Habra Heights 
CWD (LA County)

Michael Gualtieri General Manager $148,536 $0 $12,867 $161,403 $49,284 $210,687 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 1998 
connections; wells 
+ treated purchase; 
9 staff

Doesn’t include 
$11,300 Pension 
Debt

Home Garden 
CWD (Riverside 
Co)

David Vigil General Manager $74,800 $0 $0 $74,800 $3,642 $78,442 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 835 
connections; well + 
treated purchase

Centerville CSD 
(Shasta Co)

General Manager $117,849 $0 $40 $117,889 $38,413 $156,302 2019/Government 
Compensation in 

California

Serves 1272 
connections; 
treated purchase

Meiners Oaks 
CWD (Ventura Co)

Mike Hollebrands General Manager $134,924 $14,071 $0 $148,995 $27,585 $176,580 2019/Transparent 
California

Serves 1248 
connections; wells

Mean Entire List $159,443 $192,122

Mean w/o Blues $135,777 $165,306

Mean of Blacks $138,872 $167,593

Mean of Blacks 
except Tahoe

$114,951 $146,017

Employee Name Job Title Regular Pay Over:me Pay Other Pay Total Pay Benefits Total Pay & Benefits Year/Source Services Notes CommentsAgency

Local and Comparable Districts' General Managers' Pay

4



MHCWD              11/19/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM V-D 
 

  

 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: EXPENDITURE OF GRANT FUNDS FROM 

PCWA FOR GIS EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE 
 

The District was awarded a grant from PCWA for GIS equipment and software in the amount of 
$10,900.  
 
These are the expenses approved by PCWA: 
 
The following is a summary of the scope of work encompassing the Project and the specific 
Project costs covered by this Grant Agreement. 
 
ArcGIS desktop software is needed to draw the canal and distribution pipelines. This software is 
vital to keep the data up to date, and after each update, republish all map services needed 
in order to view the data in a web or mobile application. Also essential is an organizational 
account for the Esri web viewing application, ArcGIS Online (AGOL), or their mobile field 
application Explorer. 
 
• ArcGIS Desktop Basic Single Use Term License $800 
• ArcGIS Online subscription with block of 1,000 service credits $100 
• ArcGIS Online Creator, 2 user @ $500 each ($1,000 total) 
• ArcGIS Online Viewer, 1 users @ $100 each 
• Smartphones (3) @ $1000 each ($3,000 total) 
• Desktop computer with monitor capable of running ArcGIS software $4,000 
• PCWA Staff time to assist in setting up web viewing & mobile application 8 hrs. for 
CAD/GIS Technician to configure, approximately $500 
• Upgrade District’s Trimble Ranger so that District staff can locate and log District facilities 
$1,400 
 
Specific Project Costs covered by this Grant Agreement: The approved grant amount is for 
reimbursement of the costs associated with the purchase of hardware and software to complete 
the GIS mapping of District’s Facilities. 
 
I would like Board approval to purchase: 
 

1. The software outlined above, per PCWA. 
2. A monitor that matches the two monitors the District owns already 

(LG 27UL600-W - 27" IPS LED Monitor - 4K UltraHD for $460.00). This is not an item 
that I need Board authorization for, just more of for disclosure. 

3. The smart phones were already purchased from the District’s cell phone vendor, again 
not an item that I need authorization for, just more of for disclosure. 

4. A computer from Quietech Associates, Inc group. They were the low bidder at 
$2,044.50. The bids are attached. 

 
The annual maintenance cost for the GIS program is currently $2,000 a year. 









MHCWD              11/19/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-E 
 

  

 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: AWARDING OF CONTRACT TO DIVE, 

INSPECTION, CLEANOUT AND PERFORM EPOXY COATING REPAIRS 
TO THE DISTRICT’S THREE TREATED WATER TANKS 

 
During the October 15, 2020 meeting the Board awarded a contract to Pittsburg Tower 
and Tank to dive and clean the District’s three treated tanks. When I sent over the 
insurance risk transfer paperwork and the prevailing wage information, Pittsburg Tower 
and Tank resubmitted a bid that went from $3,555 to $11,860. 
 
I request that the Board award the cleaning contract to the next lowest bidder from the 
three companies that submitted bids before the October 15, 2020 Board meeting. The 
next lowest bid was from Inland Potable Services for $4,193 and repair rate of $470 per 
hour for a couple of hours. 



MHCWD              11/19/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-F 
 

  

 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: EXECUTING A “COMMITMENT TO 

EXCELLENCE” WITH THE DISTRICT’S INSURANCE PROVIDER, THE 
ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES JOINT POWERS 
INSURANCE AUTHORITY 

 
The District’s insurance provider, The Association of California Water Agencies Joint 
Powers Insurance Authority, has a new grant program. As part of the process to apply 
for a grant the District needs to execute a “Commitment to Excellence” certificate. The 
certificate is attached. 
 
I recommend that the District sign the certificate.  



Commitment to Excellence 

and the ACWA JPIA in mutual support for ensuring the most consistent, cost effective 

and broadest possible affordable insurance coverage and related services, and in  

partnership with all JPIA members, and in the interest of reducing Midway Heights 

County Water District’s insurance costs, commit to a program of excellence that, 

through the implementation of “best practices” reduces the potential and frequency of: 

 

 Vehicle Losses 

 Infrastructure Related Losses 

 Construction Related Losses 

 Employment Practices Claims 

 Ergonomic (Musculoskeletal) and Fall Injuries 

 Wildfire Prevention 

 
and fully support the goal of implementing effective preventative measures that work to 
achieve these loss reductions. 
 

______________________________(Board Member) 
Signature 
 
______________________________(Board Member) 
Signature 
 
______________________________(Board Member) 
Signature 
 
______________________________(Board Member) 
Signature 
 
______________________________(Board Member) 
Signature 
 
 

Midway Heights County Water District 

________________________________(CEO, ACWA JPIA) 
Signature 
 
________________________________(General Manager) 
Signature 
 
 
 
 



MHCWD              11/19/20 
MEMO                       BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  VI-A 

  

 
 
 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE:   REVIEW & REAFFIRMATION OF STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
 

The following is an email from the District’s lawyer: 
 
“The District’s investment policy looks fine as written.  My only comment is that the 
range of permitted investments is broader than the four types permitted under the 
existing District policy.  While the Board may wish to be conservative in its investment 
and management of ratepayer funds, it seems that at least having options available 
such as CDs, money market funds and U.S. Government obligations might be useful for 
the District.  There are higher-yielding types of investments permitted to local agencies 
as well, but such investments also carry higher risk and require more active 
management.  In all cases, there are restrictions on length of deposit and percentage of 
funds on deposit as a percentage of total District funds, so the policy would have to be 
amended if you and the Board have any interest in expanding the range of permitted 
investments.  If you want to discuss the issue further, please let me know.  Otherwise, 
the Board can reaffirm the policy as is. “ 
 
If changes are needed a resolution will be drafted for the Board to pass next month. 
 
I recommend that the Board reaffirm the current policy. 
 
Attached is the policy. 



P&P/2.1.A.       INVESTMENT POLICY       Page 1 of 3 
Approved 3/14/96 - Reaffirmed 11/98 to11/07 and10/09 to11/14 

 Amended 1/10/08 

MIDWAY  HEIGHTS  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT 

POLICIES  AND  PROCEDURES 
 

STATEMENT  OF  INVESTMENT  POLICY 

 
I. Background & Purpose. 

 
A. Government Code Section 53646 requires the District to annually 

prepare and adopt a written statement of investment policy. 
 
B. Government Code Sections 53600 et. seq., and 53630 et. seq., and 

other laws authorize the District to deposit and invest its money and 
funds in various institutions and types of investments, subject to 
limitations. 

 
C. The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to District officers 

and employees with regard to the deposit and investment of District 
monies and funds in accordance with, and subject to, the limitations 
of applicable laws. 

 
II. Scope. 
  

This investment policy applies to all monies, funds, and financial assets of 
the District, including its general fund, all enterprise funds, and any and all 
capital project funds. 

 
III. Standard of Care & Objectives. 
 

A. Deposits and investments shall be made with the judgement and 
care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of 
prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management 
of their own affairs; not for speculation, but for investment, 
considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the 
probable income to be derived.  District officers and employees 
handling deposits and investments of District funds shall act 
pursuant to a "prudent investor" standard, applied in the context of 
managing the entire portfolio.  (Government Code, Section 
53600.3.) 

 
B. When depositing, investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, 

exchanging, selling, and managing District funds, the District's 
primary goals and objectives, in order of priority, shall be: 

 
1. Safety.  To safeguard the principal of the District funds.  

Deposits and investments of District funds, monies, and 
financial assets shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks 
to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. 



P&P/2.1.A.       INVESTMENT POLICY       Page 2 of 3 
Approved 3/14/96 - Reaffirmed 11/98 to11/07 and10/09 to11/14 

 Amended 1/10/08 

 
2. Liquidity.  To meet the liquidity needs of the District.  The 

District's investment portfolio must remain sufficiently liquid 
to enable the District to meet all operating expenses and 
requirements which might be reasonably anticipated. 

 
3. Return on Investment.  To achieve a return on the 

investment of District funds.  As a final priority, the District's 
investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of 
obtaining a fair market rate of return throughout budgetary 
and economic cycles, and also be consistent with the first 
two priorities. 

 
IV. Investment Authority. 
 
 The District Board of Directors shall have principal management 

responsibility for the deposit and investment of District funds, monies, and 
financial assets pursuant to this statement of investment policy.  Only the 
District Board shall have the authority to make deposit and investment 
decisions on behalf of the District, pursuant and subject to this investment 
policy, applicable laws, and the "prudent investor" standard. 

 
V. Authorized Investments. 
 
 All District funds and monies may be deposited and invested in only one, 

or a combination of, the following institutions and investment types: 
 

A. The Placer County Treasurer investment pool. 

 
B. The State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). 
 
C. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured accounts in 

a bank, or savings and loan association. 
 
D. Intra-District fund loans and transfers, with a fair return from one 

fund to another, specifically authorized and evidenced by action of 
the Board of Directors. 

 
VI. Safekeeping & Custody. 
 
 All District deposits and investments shall have the Midway Heights 

County Water District named as depositor and registered owner.  Any 
securities purchased or acquired shall be delivered to the District by book 
entry, physical delivery, or by third party custodial agreement, as required 
by Government Code Section 53601. 

 
VII. Annual Review & Quarterly Reporting. 



P&P/2.1.A.       INVESTMENT POLICY       Page 3 of 3 
Approved 3/14/96 - Reaffirmed 11/98 to11/07 and10/09 to11/14 

 Amended 1/10/08 

 
 The District Treasurer and General Manager shall, on a quarterly basis, 

submit to the District Board of Directors copies of the most recent account 
statements received by the District from the Placer County Treasurer, and 
other institutions holding District funds and financial assets.  (Government 
Code Section 53646(e).)  The District Treasurer shall annually review this 
statement of investment policy, and request the Board of Directors to 
either make appropriate changes or reaffirm the current policy.  
(Government Code Section 53646(a).) 

 
VIII. Amendments. 
 
 This statement of investment policy shall take effect only upon adoption by 

resolution of the District Board of Directors.  Any subsequent amendments 
or modifications shall not take effect unless expressly approved by 
resolution of the District Board of Directors. 

 

 
 
 



* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *     
Balances shown for the MHCWD funds on deposit with the Placer County Treasurer were 

obtained from the most current reports provided to MHCWD by the Placer County Auditor’s Office. 
Y:\MHCWD-server-files\09-Financial\FUND SUMS\Fund Sums 2020\2020-11.docx 

MIDWAY  HEIGHTS  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT 

FUNDS  SUMMARY 
 

OCTOBER 2020 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
NOVEMBER 19, 2020 

OPERATING  FUNDS: 
 

Placer County-MHCWD Investment Trust Fund (32005):    
Balance as of:  (10/31/20)                                        $621,107.04 

*(Includes: Department of Water Resources Loan Fund, Treated Water Capital Facilities Fund, 
Designated for Emergency Fund, Designated For Future Occurrences Fund, Current Fiscal Year 
Operation Fund, Rate Stabilization Fund, Undesignated Reserve Fund.) 

 
Wells Fargo Bank: 

Adjusted Bank Statement Balance (10/31/20–Reconciled to Checking Account #1670 General) **          $35,722.82 
Adjusted Bank Statement Balance (10/31/20–Reconciled to Checking Account #9798 Rate Payer) **        $21,081.31 
 

CALIFORNIA BANK & Trust: 
Adjusted Bank Statement Balance (10/31/20– Reconciled Money Market Account #6809 Tank Loan) **        $32,880.54               
 
**See the attached Reconciliation Summary and Check Register for detail. 

 
LOAN BALANCES 
 

STATE REVOLVING FUND (0.33 MG tank and improvements, 2014, 20 year loan) 
 Balance (07/31/20)                                                               $652,438.50 

 
WEST AMERICA BANK (loan for three new service trucks, 2018, five year loan) 
 Balance (12/31/19)                                                    $101,664.85 

 
APPROVAL OF ACCOUNT TRANSFERS & BILLS PAID FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2020 

 
 
 

            _______________________________________ 
            Treasurer of the Board 
















	A 11-19-2020
	Minutes 2020-10-08-draft
	Minutes 2020-10-15-draft
	v-a 2
	Cal Fire Eagan
	v-a 1
	V-B CODE OF CONDUCT memo
	VCOC policey
	V-C ad-hoc
	1.1.E Ad Hoc Committee Scope GM review
	Report
	2018 Salary Review Update - GM Updated
	Locals & Comparables

	v-d GIS
	computer bids
	v-e clean tanks
	v-f The Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority
	Midway Heights CWD 11-20
	Investment Policy
	2.1.A Statement of Investment Policy
	2020-11 fund sum combinded
	2020-11
	2020-11 Fund Sums


